
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 10, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

May 10, 2022, at 6:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.palmerak.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a) Action Memorandum No. 22-030: Authorize the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute
a 1-year Contract, with the Option to Renew up to Three Additional Years, with Combs
Insurance Agency for Insurance Brokerage Services, not to Exceed $30,000 for the First
Year

b) Action Memorandum No. 22-031: Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Beau
Honeycutt for Appointment to the Airport Advisory Commission with Term ending December
31, 2024

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a) April 12, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes
b) April 26, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report
2. Mayor’s Report
3. City Clerk’s Report
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. Resolution No. 22-017: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Sign a Memorandum of

Agreement with the Mat-Su Tennis Association for the Rehabilitation of the Bill Hermann Tennis
Courts and to spend $25,000 and Appropriate and Authorize an Additional $15,000 for Fencing,
Signage Improvements, and Handicap Access

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

J. NEW BUSINESS

K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

Mayor Steven J. Carrington 
Deputy Mayor Pamela Melin 
Council Member Richard W. Best 
Council Member Carolina Anzilotti 

City Manager John Moosey 
City Clerk Shelly M. Acteson, CMC 
City Attorney Sarah Heath, Esq. 

1

http://www.palmerak.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 10, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
M. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – Review Council Vacancies Appointment Process 

 
N. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
O. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
P. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 

Tentative Future Palmer City Council Meetings 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

May 17 Special 6 pm Council Vacancies 
May 24 Regular 6 pm  
Jun 14 Regular 6 pm  
Jun 28 Regular 6 pm  
July 12 Regular 6 pm  
July 26 Regular 6 pm  
August 9 Regular 6 pm  
August 23 Regular 6 pm  

 

2



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-030 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 22-030 

Subject:  Authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a 1-year contract, with the option to renew up to 
three additional years, with Combs Insurance Agency for insurance brokerage services, not to exceed $30,000.00 
for the first year. 

Agenda of: May 10, 2022 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 

X Finance 04/25/2022 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 30,000.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 30,000.00 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): Various line items 

Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

3



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-030 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Combs Insurance Agency Proposal 
2. Draft Agreement 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The service agreement with the city’s current insurance brokerage company, RISQ, will expire June 30, 2022; no 
additional renewals remain on the contract. 
 
Human Resources issued a Request for Proposal on March 4, 2022. 
 
Five proposals were received.  All five were reviewed and scored based on the criteria listed in the Request for 
Proposal.  Combs Insurance Agency scored the highest and Risq was the next qualified proposer. 
 
The city entered into discussions with Combs Insurance Agency, the most qualified proposer, and those 
discussions resulted in a fair and reasonable contract. 
 
The first year of the contract is in the amount of $30,000.00.  If the city renews the contract for three (3) additional 
one (1) year terms as outlined in the RFP, the rate for year 2 will be $30,900.00, year 3 will be $31,900.00 and 
year 4 will be $32,000.00 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-030. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-031 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 22-031 

Subject:  Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Beau Honeycutt for Appointment to the Airport Advisory 
Commission with Term Ending December 31, 2024 

Agenda of: May 10, 2022 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor Carrington via City Manager’s Office 
 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 750.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ $750.00/year 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-19-90-6059 

Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

85



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-031 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Board Commission Application 
2. Resume 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Airport Advisory Commission is a seven-member board with one seat that expired December 31, 2021.  
 
Public notice of this recruitment was posted on the City’s website and posted on the City of Palmer’s social media 
sites. 
 
One application was received, as noted below.  
 
Applicant was: 
 

1. Beau Honeycutt 
 
The applicant met code requirements and after review, Beau Honeycutt is nominated for reappointment to fill the 
vacant seat. 
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-031 
 
 
 
 
 
  

86



87



88



89



90



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 12, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 1 of 7 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
April 12, 2022 

A. CALL TO ORDER:

A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on April 12, 2022, in the Council Chambers, Palmer, 
Alaska.  Mayor Carrington called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  

B. ROLL CALL:

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
Steve Carrington, Mayor Brian Daniels 
Pamela Melin, Deputy Mayor Richard Best  
Carolina Anzilotti  Sabrena Combs 
Jill Valerius 

Staff in attendance were the following: 

John Moosey, City Manager Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
Sarah Heath, City Attorney  Holly Dubose, Deputy City Clerk

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a) Information Memorandum No. 22-002, Cedar Park Subdivision Agreement
b) Information Memorandum No. 22-003, Memorandum of Agreement Regarding

Traffic Signal at Felton Street and Palmer-Wasilla Highway
2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting

a. March 8, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes

E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS

F. REPORTS
City Manager’s Report

City Manager John Moosey reported on the following: 
• Rosalie Kelly started as the Airport Superintendent this Monday
• Matsu Borough looking at Senior exemption on their primary residence
• Brad Hanson presented information regarding community cleanup 2022:

o May 9th-13th dumpsters stationed at MTA Events Center for disposal of yard debris.

Main Motion: Approval of Consent Agenda and Minutes 
Moved by: Melin 
Seconded by: Combs 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

91



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 12, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 of 7 
 

o May 14th – Clean up starts at MTA Events Center to include Face Painting for kids, prizes 
and BBQ to follow. 

• Fire Chief Chad Cameron  
o Overview of 2021 Fire & Rescue Annual Report 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 Mayor Carrington reported on the following: 
• Upcoming training for Council members 

 
Council Member Daniels commented on threats made toward business owners and inquired when the 
Mayor and Council would be addressing the issue. 
 
Mayor Carrington called for a brief at ease, and Council Member Daniels departed the meeting. 
 
City Clerk’s Report 
 City Clerk Shelly Acteson reported on the following: 

• To date, the Clerk’s Office had received 70 absentee by mail applications and nearly 180 voters 
• April 19th, 2022, is the special City of Palmer election 

 
City Attorney Report 

City Attorney Sarah Heath reported on the following: 
• City of Palmer and Chamber relationship overview. 

 
Deputy Mayor Melin asked how the City of Palmer can secure its interests in the Colony celebration. 
Attorney Heath stated that would happen through negotiation with the Chamber along with a group of 
Chamber Members.  

 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 
Mike Coons: 

• Spoke negatively regarding the name change recently proposed by the Chamber of Commerce. 
 
     Sherman Leifer: 

• Commented on homeless individuals interacting with his employees when they leaving work. 
 
Wes Artz: 

• Commented on the limiting parking outside downtown Palmer businesses, limited access to 
elderly patrons, and suggested putting a cross walk for pedestrians. 
 

 Jackie Goforth: 
• Commented on the need for rules to be followed by everyone 
• Provided an audio of a campaign. 

  
       Michelle Kruger: 

• Recited mask mandate conversations from Mat-Su Moms for Social Justice Facebook page 
 

       Dickey Hudgins: 
• Read a continuation of mask mandate conversations. 

  
        Cindy Hudgins: 

• Commented on Attorneys report. 

92



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 12, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 of 7 
 

• Commented on purported comments made toward a Council Member. 
      
 Lorie Koppenberg: 

• Stated members of Palmer Chamber of Commerce were not notified regarding the proposed 
name change.  

 
H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Ordinance No. 22-002, An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting the Zoning Map to 
Revise the Zoning Designation of Lot 100, Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, from R-3, Medium 
Density Residential to R-4, High Density Residential 

 
Director Hanson gave an overview of the rezoning ordinance.  

 
Mayor Carrington opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 22-002. Seeing no one come 
forward and hearing no objection from the Council, Mayor Carrington closed the public hearing. 
 

 
2. Resolution No. 22-012: Authorizing the City Manager to Declare Support for Senate Bill 111 

 
City Manager Moosey gave an overview of the senate bill.  

 
 Mayor Carrington opened the public hearing on Resolution No. 22-012.  
 
 Mike Coons: 

• Encouraged that the letter be provided to the Co-Chair of Education.   
• Suggested that this does not get put to three other committee hearings as it will  most 

likely get shot down. 
 

 
3. Resolution No. 22-013: Authorizing the City Manager to Accept the Volunteer Fire Assistance  

Volunteer Fire Assistance Grant Award 
  

Mayor Carrington opened the public hearing on Resolution No. 22-013. Seeing no one come 
forward and hearing no objection from the Council, Mayor Carrington closed the public hearing. 

 
 Council Member Best commented favorably on the dedication of volunteer fire fighters.  
 
 
 

Main Motion: Approval of Ordinance No. 22-002 
Moved by: Valerius 
Seconded by: Melin 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

Main Motion: To Adopt Resolution No. 22-012 
Moved by: Melin 
Seconded by: Anzilotti 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

93



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 12, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 4 of 7 
 

 
4. Resolution No. 22-014: Authorize the City Manager to purchase new sewer cleaner truck in the 

amount of $455,431.42 
 
 Public Works Director Jude Bilafer gave an overview of the purchase of the new sewer truck.   
  

Mayor Carrington opened the public hearing on Resolution No. 22-014. Seeing no one come 
forward and hearing no objection from the Council, Mayor Carrington closed the public hearing. 

  

 
I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
J. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Action Memorandum No. 22-021: Direct the City Manager to Execute a Commercial 

Operating Agreement between the City of Palmer and Alaska Skydive Center, LLC 
  

Main Motion: To combine Action Memorandum No. 22-021, 22-022 & 22-023 
Moved by: Best  
Seconded by: Combs 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried  

 
2. Action Memorandum No. 22-022: Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of Alaska of  

the City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection of the license renewal of Caboose Lounge #1194. 
 

3. Action Memorandum No. 22-023: Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of Alaska of 
the City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection of the license renewal of Iron Horse Liquor #1195 

 
Approval of Action Memorandum Nos. 22-021, 22-022 and 22-023 were combined into one motion. 

 

 

Main Motion: To Adopt Resolution No. 22-013 
Moved by: Melin 
Seconded by: Valerius 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

Main Motion: To Adopt Resolution No. 22-014 
Moved by: Valerius 
Seconded by: Combs 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-021, 22-022 & 22-023 
Moved by: Combs  
Seconded by: Best 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

94



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 12, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 5 of 7 
 

4. Action Memorandum No. 22-024: Approve the Sub-Lease of Lease Lot 28, Block 3, Palmer 
Municipal Airport between Michael Meekins and Diane Meekins d.b.a Meekins’ Air Service to Steve 
Odean d.b.a. Advanced Aero Technologies Group 
 

 
5. Action Memorandum No. 22-025: Approving a Council Community Grant to 49th State Street 

Rodders Association Inc.  
 

Council Member Anzilotti questioned the amounts listed in the legislation. Manager Moosey said the 
form would be updated to correctly reflect actual grant amounts. Council Member Best suggested  
amending the grant to $1,000. There was no support for the suggestion. Director Hanson provided 
an overview on the donation, which provides facility use, not actual monetary money. Manager 
Moosey gave a clarification regarding the event and the interest in the public.  

 

 
6. Action Memorandum No. 22-026: Approving a Council Grant to Rodeo Alaska ($4,500) 

 

 

 
7. Action Memorandum No. 22-027: Authorize Utilization of Funds Awarded from the State of 

Alaska Homeland Security Grant and Approved by the City of Palmer Council in Resolution No. 
21-036 for the Purchase and Installation of a Millennium Electronic Door Lock System in Palmer 
Fire & Rescue Structures 
 
 
 
 

Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-024 
Moved by: Melin 
Seconded by: Best 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-025 
Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Valerius 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

Main Motion: Main Motion to approve Action Memorandum No. 22-026 
Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Valerius 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

Amended 
Motion: 

To approve Action Memorandum No. 22-026 with half the amount coming 
out of the City Managers budget 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Best 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

95



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 12, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 

K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
Clean Up Day flyer from Director Hanson, Fire Department pamphlet & 2021 annual report info from 
Chief Chad, material from Michelle Kruger, and document from Jackie Goforth. 

 
L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

       
Mike Coons: 

• Commented on the council members that are also businesses owners. 
• Commented on Mr. Daniels conduct during the meeting.  

 
 Jackie Goforth: 

• Commented on Council members being business owners. 
• Commented negatively regarding Dominion voting machines. 

 
Frank Koslosky: 

• Thanked the Council for their time and effort put in and thanked the council for the in-kind 
grant approval for the rodeo event. 

  
Dickey Hudgins: 

• Requested the City get rid of Dominion machines for the election. 
 

Mike Chmielewski: 
• Commented on the Palmer council and its potential in the future and expressed the importance 

of truth. 
  

Cindy Hudgins: 
• Conveyed the importance of Palmer’s history  

  
      Erik Anderson: 

• Commented on Council Member Best’s tardiness. 
• Remarked on the professionalism and control of the Council. 

 
      Michelle Kruger: 

• Commented on the attendance record of Council Member Valerius and Council Member Best. 
 

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
   

 Council Member Combs: 
• Stated her absence for the April 26 council meeting. 
• Commented regarding Colony Days name change and asked for grace.  

Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-027 
Moved by: Melin 
Seconded by: Combs 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

96



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 12, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 7 of 7 
 

• Made a statement regarding negative comments made by members of the public during the 
meeting. 
 

Council Member Valerius: 
• Agreed with the chamber comments made by Council Member Combs.  
• Thanked Fire Chief Cameron and the firefighters. 
• Apologized for comments made and hopes everyone can do better in the future as a whole. 
 

 Council Member Best: 
• Thanked everyone for showing up to the meeting. 
• Thanked Palmer citizens for their comments. 

 
Deputy Mayor Melin: 

• Thanked Fire Chief Cameron for his report. 
• Commented regarding the public testimony regarding crosswalks. 

 
     Deputy Mayor Anzilotti: 

• Thanked Fire Chief Cameron for his presentation. 
• Commented regarding Council Member Daniels comments made earlier in the meeting 

concerning threats to businesses, and that the truth will speak for itself. 
 

O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
APPROVED this 10th day of May, 2022. 
 
 
              
       ________________________________________ 
       Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 
______________________________________ 
Steve Carrington, Mayor 
 

97



98



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 26, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 1 of 4 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
April 26, 2022 

A. CALL TO ORDER:

A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on April 26, 2022, in the Council Chambers, Palmer, 
Alaska.  Mayor Carrington called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  

B. ROLL CALL:

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
Steve Carrington, Mayor Brian Daniels 
Pamela Melin, Deputy Mayor Richard Best 
Carolina Anzilotti 

Council Members Combs and Valerius were absent and excused. 

Staff in attendance were the following: 

John Moosey, City Manager Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
Sarah Heath, City Attorney  Holly Dubose, Deputy City Clerk

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a) Information Memorandum No. 22-004: Brittany Estates Subdivision Storm
Management Property Acquisition
b) Action Memorandum No. 22-028: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Enter

into a Contract with Pioneer Asphalt in an Amount not to Exceed $89,850.85, for 2022
Pavement Repairs
c) Action Memorandum 22-029:  2021 Crack Sealing, Street Striping, and Pothole Patching

One Year Contract Extension

E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS

F. REPORTS
City Manager’s Report

City Manager John Moosey reported on the following: 
• Insurance broker RFP has closed

Main Motion: Approval of Consent Agenda and Minutes 
Moved by: Anzilotti 
Seconded by: Daniels 
Vote: Approved 
Action: Motion Carried 

99



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 26, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 of 4 
 

• Newspaper RFP will be to City Counsel shortly 
• IT RFT to be out in a month 
• Drive your tractor to workday is Monday, May 2, 2022 
• May 7-8 Great Alaska Aviation Gathering 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 Mayor Carrington reported on the following: 
• Attended mayor’s and managers meeting last week 
• City of palmer spring city clean up week next week 
• Great Alaska aviation show 
• Car show next week 
• Who Let the Girls Out event this weekend 
• Resurrected the mayor email working; mayor@palmerak.org 
• Lots of change this year – largest election we have had 
• Reminded about what kind of change the city community would like 

 
City Clerk’s Report 
 City Clerk Shelly Acteson reported on the following: 

• May 3rd Election certification meeting 
• 30 days to fill vacant council seats 

 
City Attorney Report 

City Attorney Sarah Heath reported on the following: 
• No report today 

 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

Jacki Ivie Goforth: 
• Declared herself as a data collector. 
• Would like to help the city as much as possible moving forward. 

 
 Mike Coons: 

• Would like issues as a poll watcher to be addressed in the future. 
 

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Resolution No. 22-015: Supporting the MSB School District Inclusion of the Bill Hermann Tennis 

Courts Rehabilitation in Their Six-Year Capital Improvement Plan  
  
 Manager Moosey gave an overview of the six-year improvement plan.  
 
Mayor Carrington opened the public hearing. Seeing no one come forward, the public hearing was 
closed. 
  
Deputy Mayor Melin asked about the additional $15,000 funding. Manager Moosey explained that the          
money for the rest project would be asked for in the future. 
 
     Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-020 
Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Anzilotti 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried  

 

100

mailto:mayor@palmerak.org


_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 26, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 of 4 
 

 
2. Resolution No. 21-005 B: Amending the City of Palmer Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending 

December 31, 2021 
 
Manager Moosey gave a brief update on the budget for the fire and rescue department. 
 
Mayor Carrington opened the public hearing. 
 
Mike Coons: 

• gave a brief overview of his experience as a fire fighter. He applauded the active firefighters. 
 
Seeing no one else come forward, Mayor Carrington closed the public hearing. 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-005 B 
Moved by: Melin 
Seconded by: Daniels 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried  

 
I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
J. NEW BUSINESS 

 
K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 

 
L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

       
Erik Anderson: 

• Acknowledged the importance of city spending. 
 
Jackie Goforth: 

• Shared her experience as a poll watcher. 
      
     Mike Coons 

• Requested that Council Member Daniels apologize to the public. 
 

Amy Smith: 
• Gave heartfelt thank you and kudos to Council Members Combs, Daniels and Valerius 
• Apologized for the behaviors of city citizens and council members 

 
     Michelle Kruger: 

• Requested measures for the next election for poll watchers. 
    
  Cindy Hudgins: 

• Recited quotes of the meaning of freedom. 
   
M. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
N. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
 

101



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   April 26, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 4 of 4 
 

Council Member Anzilotti: 
• Thanked Combs, Daniels and Valerius for their service on the council. 
• Thanked the poll watchers.  
• Thanked Mayor Carrington for the reminder to be kind. 

 
Council Member Daniels: 

• Thanked Rock of Resilience for their contributions to Palmer. 
• Thanked the people of Palmer for their support. 
• Thanked the City staff for their efforts. 
• Addressed mental health issues and his behavior at prior meeting. 
• Thanked Mayor Carrington for the kindness reminder. 
• Reminded the Council Members that they work for the people of Palmer. 

 
Council Member Best raised points of order during Council Member Daniels’ comments concerning 
non-compliance with the City’s Code of Ethics and Conduct document. 
 
Mayor Carrington and Attorney Heath allowed Council Member Daniels to continue with his 
comments. 
 
Deputy Mayor Melin: 

• Addressed comments by Mr. Anderson. 
• Questioned the City’s pay comparison with other agencies  
• Wished outgoing council members the best 

 
Mr. Moosey answered Deputy Mayor Melin’s question regarding pay, stating the City will review pay 
comparison during the 2023 budget process. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 6:52 p.m. 
 
APPROVED this 10th day of May, 2022. 
 
 
              
       ________________________________________ 
       Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 
______________________________________ 
Steve Carrington, Mayor 
 

102



City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-017 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 22-017 

Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Sign a Memorandum of Agreement with the Mat-Su 
Tennis Association for the Rehabilitation of the Bill Hermann Tennis Courts and to Spend $25,000 and Appropriate 
and Authorize an additional $15,000 for Fencing, Signage Improvements and Handicap Access 

Agenda of: May 10, 2022 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Brad Hanson, Director Community Development 
 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 04/26/2022 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 40,000 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 40,000 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): $25,000 08-01-10-7179
√ Unbudgeted $15,000 

 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 

City Attorney 
City Clerk 

103



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-017 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. AM No. 21-047 and attachments  
2. Memorandum of Understanding Agreement Between City of Palmer and Mat-Su Tennis Association 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Mat-Su Tennis Association, Palmer Rotary, Wasilla Sunrise Club and the City of Palmer have agreed to 
cooperatively rehabilitate the Bill Hermann Tennis Courts.  The Bill Hermann Tennis Courts are owned, operated 
and maintained by the City of Palmer. These courts service hundreds of players during the season.  They also 
serve as the home court for Palmer High School tennis teams, clubs, and individual players.  The tennis courts 
also play host to numerous matches, tournaments and classes.  The courts are in a serious state of disrepair. 
 
The Palmer City Council appropriated $25,000 for the project to resurface and reline the tennis courts.  The Mat-
Su Tennis Association will work closely with the city to ensure all specification standards, permits and requirements 
are met and in place for the project.  
 
The Mat-Su Tennis Association has assumed the leadership for the construction of the project with cooperation 
from the Palmer Rotary and Wasilla Sunrise Club.  They estimate the cost of the project at $185,000.  Mat-Su 
Tennis Association applied for and received a grant for $90,000 from the Mat Su Trails and Parks Foundation.  
These groups expect to raise most of the funds for the project through outside sources. 
 

Funding Update 
 

Rotary     $27,000 
United States Tennis Association $20,000 
City Of Palmer    $25,000 
Matanuska Electric Association   
Charitable Foundation   $10,000 
Mat-Su Trails and Parks Foundation $90,000 
Mat-Su Borough School District TBD 
Total Funding to Date   $172,000 

 
This legislation authorizes spending the 2022 Capital Improvement funds of the appropriated $25,000 and 
requests an additional $15,000 for new fencing, handicap access and new signage.   
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 22-017.  
 
 

104



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-017 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 22-017 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Sign a 
Memorandum of Agreement with the Mat-Su Tennis Association for the Rehabilitation of the Bill 
Hermann Tennis Courts, Spend $25,000 and Appropriate and Authorize an additional $15,000 for 
Fencing, Signage Improvements and Handicap Access 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer has long history of cooperatively planning and installing community 
supported projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer Bill Hermann Tennis Courts (Courts) are owned, operated and maintained 

by the City of Palmer and are in a state of disrepair; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Courts are used by numerous citizens, tennis groups and the Palmer High School tennis 

teams use the Courts as their home venue for practice and games; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer on August 10, 2021, passed Action Memorandum No. 21-047 supporting 

the Palmer Rotary, and Wasilla Sunrise clubs’ project to resurface Courts and committed $25,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Mat-Su Tennis Association is a 501 C(3) Non-Profit Corporation 501C(3) who’s mission is 

promoting lifelong physical activity in the Mat-Su Valley and State of Alaska through the sport of tennis has 
agreed to act as the funding agent for the rehabilitation of the Courts. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council that the City Council authorizes the City 

Manager to sign a Memorandum of Agreement with the Mat-Su Tennis Association for the rehabilitation of the 
courts and authorize the $25,000 expenditure; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED to appropriate and authorize spending an additional 

$15,000 for improved fencing, signage, and handicap access to the Bill Hermann Tennis Court Facility.  
 

Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2022. 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Steve Carrington, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager 

Date: May 10, 2022 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

105



City  of  Palmer

Action  Memorandum  No. 21-047

Subject:  Supporting the Palmer  Rotary and Wasilla  Sunrise  Club's  Project  to Resurface  the  Palmer  Tennis  Courts

and Directing the City Manager to Budget Funds in the 2022 City Budget in the Amount of $251000.00  for the
Purpose  of Supporting  this  Project.

Agenda  of:  August  10, 2021

Council  Action: €  Approved

€  Defeated

€  Amended:

Originator  John Moosey,  City Manager

Route  to: Department  Director:

Community  Development

Finance

Fire

Police

Public  Works

Signature:

,A;'42<

Date:

07/21/2021

07/21/2021

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 25f000.00

This legislation  (V'):

Creates  revenue  in the amount  of:

Creates  expenditure  in the amount  of:

Creates  a saving  in the amount  of:

Has no fiscal  impact

25,000.00

Funds  are

Line item(s):  Include  in the 2022 Budget

I As'ixirbsltsvDaszieziy+>+;ayazfliii
I 'pp  I %J r  , @ I r  I JI  I %  lll  I &17 a

cityxanagersna 7')
Remarks:

r, !/
:'/

City  Attorney

City Clerk

CityofPalmer/Alaska:Ml  No. 21-047
Ozyz  4 7  yl  97

Page 1 of 2106



Attachment(s):

1.  Palmer  Rotary  and Wasilla  Sunrise  Club Presentation  (Projed  Overview)

2. Project  Funding  update  07-21

3. Resolution  21-01  Palmer  Parks Recreation  and Resources  Advisory  Board Support  for  the proposed  project

Summary  Statement/Background:

The City of Palmer  tennis  courts  are owned  and maintained  by the City of Palmer.  These  court  service  hundreds

or players  during  the  season  to include  several  teams  (Palmer  HS, etc.),  clubs,  and individual  players  alike.  They

also play host  to numerous  matches,  tournaments,  and classes.

Currently,  the courts  are in a serious  state  of disrepair.  The Palmer  Rotary  and the Wasilla  Sunrise  Club have

teamed  their  efforts  to raise funds  and plan a resurfacing  and upgrade  project  for  the  Palmer  tennis  courts.  This

project  is their  primary  service  project  for  the 2021 and 2022 project  season.

The Palmer Rotary and Wasilla Sunrise Club estimate the cost of the project at $175,000.00 to $200,000.00.

Palmer  Rotary  and Wasilla  Sunrise  Club expect  to raise most  of the funds  for  the project  through  outside  sources

and request  the City Council  support  the project  by planning  for  and appropriating  funds  from  the 2022 budget

in an amount of $25,000.00  for the resurfacing and upgrade project.

The Palmer  Rotary  and Wasilla  Sunrise  Club project  planners  will work  closely  with Palmer  Public Works  and

Community  Development  to ensure  all standards,  permits  and requirements  are met  and in place  for  the project.

Administration's  Recommendation:

Approve  Action  Memorandum  No. 21-047,  supporting  the Palmer  Rotary  and Wasilla  Sunrise  Club projed  and

direding  the City Manager to budget $25,000.00 in the 2022 budget to support the project.

CityofPalmer,Alaska:Ml  No. 21-047
Oaiyzi  4 Q xi  ')7

Page 2 of 2

107



Rotary @ June  22,  2021

2021-22  Palmer  Tennis  Courts  Refurbishment  Project

Overview-  The  Palmer  Rotary  and  Wasilla  Sunrise  Rotary  clubs  would  like  to refurbish  the  playing

surface  of  the  3 Palmer  tennis  courts  located  on E. Elmwood  Ave.  and  S. Gulkana  St. This  is a

Community  Service  project  for  the  citizens  of  the  Matanuska-Susitna  Valley.  In addition  to  the

removal/replacement  of the hot-mix  asphalt and  a new  acrylic  playing  surface,  nets,  & pickle  ball

equipment,  a new  32'  long  backboard  will  be installed  on one  of  the  courts.  Colors  of  the  playing

surface  may  be selected  at  a later  date.

Perimeter  drainage  will  be improved.  A wind  screen  on the  east  side  ofthe  courts  and  new  fence  fabric

is desired  as well.

The TOTAL estimated  cost of the project  is 9175,000  to 9200,000.00

We  are planning  on raising  funds  for  the  next  8 months.  The  courts  would  be out  of  use for  2 months  in

2022.  The  goat  is to not  interfere  with  High  School  tennis  season.

Funding  Partners-  The  following  organizations  have  committed  funds  for  the  project:

*  Wasilla  Sunrise  Rotary  - S5,000  (2021-'22)

*  Palmer  Rotary  Club  - §12,000  (2020-'21  & 2021-'22)

*  Rotary  District  5010  - SI0,000  (matching  grant)

@ Rotary  International  - SO.OO (matching  grant)

Other  organizations  that  have  been  solicited  for  funding  the  project:

*  MatSu  Health  Foundation

*  Rassmuson  Foundation

*  MatSu  Borough  Parks  and  Trails

*  Matanuska  Electric  Association

*  MatSu  Borough  School  District

*  MatSu  Tennis  Association

*  US Tennis  Association

Scope  of  Work-  We  desire  to removal  the  existing  HMA,  regrade  and  pave  new  HMA.  Surface  the  courts

with  4 coats  of  NOVAACRYLIC  sports  surface  (see Colony  High  photos.)  Line  the  courts  for  regulation

tennis,  junior  tennis,  UIO  tennis  (cross  court)  and  pickle  ball.  Install  new  nets  and posts  (if  necessary.)

Repair  fence  fabric  and  perimeter  drainage.  Install  a new  32'  x 10'  back  board  (Rally  Master  Backboards;

see attached  photos).  Purchase  and  install  a wind  screen  with  funding  participant's  logos.

Construction  Schedule-

*  Install  new  Rally  Master  Backboard  -August,  2021

*  Remove  existing  asphalt  (HMA)  -  May,  2022

*  Pave new  courts  -  May,  2022

*  Resurface  playing  surface  and  lines  -June,  2022

*  GRAND  OPENING  Ribbon  cutting  June  30, 2022

Oxxza  4a  x € ')7108



Rally  Master  Back  Board

Rally  Master  Back  Board  fence  post  connection

June  22,  2021

D>yz  ')n  yl  97109



ffll,150. I r y y..%"  C

o

o

o

o

o

110



Palmer  Tennis  Courts

Funding  Update

This  project  is a partnership  between  the  Wasilla  Sunrise  & Palmer  Rotary  clubs  as well  as

the  Mat-Su  Tennis  Association,  501  C(3);  President  Susan  Brunner  & Treasure  Traci  Sanders.

Grants

Wasilla  Sunrise  Rotary  Club

Rotary  District  5010

Palmer  Rotary  Club

Palmer  Rotary  Club

Rotary  District  5010

TO DATE  SECURED  FUNDING

Rotarv  Year

2021

2021

2020

2021

2021

',  s,ooo

S 5,000

S 6,000

S 3,000

S 3,000

S 22,000

Future  Fundraising  Forecast

City  of  Palmer

MatSu  Borough

MatSu  Health  Foundation

MEA

USTA

Private  Donations

S 25,000

S 25,000

S 40,000

',  io,ooo

S s,ooo

S 20,000

S 125,000

GRAND  TOTAL S 147,000

Daeszeh  99  yl  97111



PARKS AND  RECREATION ADVISORY  BOARD

Introduced  by:  PRAB Chair

Date:  July  1, 2021

Action:

Vote:

Yes: No:

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA

Parks  and  Recreation  Advisory  Board

Resolution  No. 21-001

A Resolution  of  the  City  of Palmer  Parks  and  Recreation  Advisory  Board  Recommending  the

Support  of  the  City  Council  for  the  Palmer  Rotary  and  Wasilla  Sunrise  Club's  Project  to  Resurface

the  Palmer  Tennis  Courts.

WHEREAS,  the City of Palmer  tennis  courts  are owned  and maintained  by the City  of Palmer;  and

WHEREAS,  the City of Palmer  tennis  courts  are used by numerous  citizens,  tennis  groups  and teams

throughout  the  season  in support  or recreation  and a heathy  lifestyle;  and

WHEREAS,  the City of Palmer  tennis  courts  are in a state  of disrepair  and in need of resurfacing  and

other  additional  work;  and

WHEREAS,  the Palmer  Rotary  and the Wasilla  Sunrise  Club have adopted  the resurfacing  of the Palmer

tennis  courts  as their  main service  project  for  2021 and 2022;  and

WHEREAS,  the Parks and Recreation  Advisory  Board supports  the Palmer  Rotary  and Wasilla  Sunrise

Club's  projed,

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED the City of Palmer Parks and Recreation  Advisory  Board

Recommends  the Palmer  City Council  Support  the Palmer  Rotary  and Wasilla  Sunrise  Club's  Project  to Resurface

the Palmer  Tennis  Courts.

Approved  by the Palmer  City Council  this   day of , 2020.

Marilyn  Bennett,  Chair

Chris Nall, Diredor  of Public  Works

CityofPalmer,Alaska:  Resolution No. 21-001 Page 1 of 1
Dyyzi  ')1  yl  ')7112



May 5, 2022 
Page 1 of 5 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AGREEMENT 
FOR RECONSTRUCTION OF Bill HERMANN TENNIS COURTS 

BETWEEN CITY OF PALMER AND MAT-SU TENNIS ASSOCIATION  

WHEREAS, the city of Palmer operates and maintains the Bill Hermann Tennis 
Courts, which are in need of complete reconstruction, and 

WHEREAS, The Bill Hermann Tennis Courts serve hundreds of players in 
Palmer and serve as the home courts for the Palmer High School Tennis Team, and 

WHEREAS, the city of Palmer, on August 10, 2021, passed Action Memorandum 
No. 21-047 supporting the Palmer Rotary and Wasilla Sunrise Club’s project to 
resurface the Bill Hermann Tennis Courts and committed $25,000, and 

WHEREAS, the Mat-Su Tennis Association is a Non-Profit Corporation 501C(3) 
whose mission is to promote lifelong physical activity in the Mat-Su Valley and the State 
of Alaska through the sport of tennis, and 

Therefore, the Parties agree to the following: 

• Purpose

a. The purpose of this agreement is to refurbish the Bill Hermann Tennis Courts
located at 720 S Gulkana St., and

b. Establish the scope of the restoration services for each party involved, and

c. To set the scope of work, construction timeline, monetary contributions, and
legal resolution procedure for each party.

• Scope of Work

a. Phase I – Removal of existing asphalt (HMA), regrade, and pave a new HMA.

b. Phase II –Resurface the courts with NOVAACRYLIC sports surface.

c. Phase III – Lines to include three regulation tennis courts; with two tennis
court containing youth court lines and one tennis court containing multiple
pickleball lines.

d. Phase IV - Replace Fence Fabric and Perimeter drainage.

113



 
May 5, 2022 
 Page 2 of 5 

e. Phase V – Install backboards (rally master), windscreen, and possibly funding 
logos. 

• Construction Schedule & Requirements 

a. Schedule 

i. Remove Existing asphalt (HMA) – May 2022 

ii. Pave New HMA on Courts May 2022 

iii. Resurface playing surface, paint, and lines June 2022 

iv. Grand Opening Ribbon Cut June 30, 2022 

v. Install Rally Master Backboard August 2022 

b. Requirements  

i. Paving requirements shall include the following: 

• Asphalt Court for freeze-thaw climates: 1) compacted subgrade, 
2) 6-8 inches of compacted base course, 3) 2-1/4” – 3” of 
compacted asphalt leveling course, and 4) 1-1/2” compacted 
asphalt surface course.  

• Shall use no Recycled asphalt pavement and/or Recycled 
asphalt shingles.  

• Court slope from north to south between .83% - 1.00%  
• Asphalt must properly cure between 14-30 days depending on 

site and weather conditions to ensure proper acrylic bonding.  
• Asphalt surface should not vary more than 1/4” in 10’ or 1/8” in 

18” when measured in any direction using a straightedge.  

ii. Coating & line requirements shall include the following: 

• Basic acrylic surface shall be applied consisting of 1 coat of 
Novasurface acrylic resurface, 2 coats of Novasurface acrylic 
surfacing green and Blue. 

• Edges adjacent to the building, curbing, and landscaping not to 
be coated with this Color Finish System shall be adequately 
masked with tape or protected during these applications. The 
contractor shall also erect suitable temporary barriers to protect 
the coatings during drying and curing periods. 

114



 
May 5, 2022 
 Page 3 of 5 

• Lines include three regulation tennis courts, with two tennis 
court containing youth court lines and one court having multiple 
pickleball lines. 

• Palmer Contributions 

a. Palmer city council has approved $25,000 for the project. 

• Operation & Management 

• Dispute Resolution 

a. In case of disputes, the Parties will select and agree to an individual to act as 
an independent mediator. This mediator will facilitate discussion between the 
Parties and work to resolve contentious issues and achieve consensus. 

b. The mediator’s role will include: establishing ground rules for discussions and 
communications; providing an opportunity for each Party to describe their 
issues; identifying and summarizing any underlying causes; proposing options 
for resolution; promoting debate and analysis of solutions; promoting 
consideration of and refining proposed solutions; and recording a final 
agreement in writing. 

c. The mediator will not be a current or former employee or elected official of 
any Party to this agreement. 

d. In the event mediation is unsuccessful, any action arising from this agreement 
will be filed in Anchorage 3rd Judicial District, Alaska. 

• Fees and Fee Payment 

a.  

• Amendments 

a. Proposed amendments to this agreement shall be approved by unanimous 
consent of the Parties and must be subsequently adopted by each of the 
Party’s governing bodies or executives. 

b. The Parties agree to review the level of effort and demand requirements of 
the dispatch services provided by DPS under this agreement and consider 
adjustments to compensation on an annual basis. 

• Non-Appropriation 

115



May 5, 2022 
Page 4 of 5 

a. 

• Term of Agreement

a. This agreement shall last until June 30, 2022, or until the project is fully
completed.

b. Either Party may terminate this agreement if the other Party fails to perform in
the manner called for in the agreement.

c. Either Party may terminate this agreement if there is insufficient or other lack
of funds lawfully appropriated for its performance.

d. The terminating Party must give notice at least 30 days before the desired
termination date, but in no case any earlier than June 1, 2023.

• Indemnification

a. Each of the participating jurisdictions shall be solely responsible for its own
acts and the acts of its employees and officers under this Agreement. No
participating jurisdiction shall be responsible or liable for consequential
damages to any other participating jurisdiction arising out of the performance
of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

116



 
May 5, 2022 
 Page 5 of 5 

• Approvals 

SUBSCRIBED TO AND ENTERED INTO by the appropriate officers who are duly 
authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the governing body of the below 
named unit of government. 

CITY OF PALMER     Mat-Su Tennis Association 

 

________________________________  _______________________________ 

City Manager President, Mat-Su Tennis Association 

Date: ___________________   Date: ___________________ 

 
ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

_________________________, City Clerk 

Date: ___________________ 

 

117


	01 2022-05 10 Agenda Regular
	02 AM 22-030 Brokerage Services
	03 AM 22-031, appoint Beau Honeycutt to AAC
	04 4.12.22 RM Minutes
	05 4.26.22 RM Minutes
	06 Resolution 22-017 Authorizing and Appropriating MSSD Tennis Court



